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INTRODUCTION

This study is designed to fulfill the requirement
of a Stage IA documentary survey for block 1327, lots 1,
1 1/4, 112, 2, 3, 3 1/2, 4, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 101,
102, Third Avenue between 53rd Street and 54th Street,
as required'by the New York City Landmarks Preservation
Commission, The site was flagged for study because it
was within 600 feet of a watercourse, now underground.
Such sites have been demonstrated to have been.preferred
for settlement by both Amerindians and early Colonial
farmers, and thus have been recommended for Stage IA survey
at a minimum.l

This study consists of an examination, through maps
and texts, of the ﬁistory of the area of block 1327 and
its natural topography. In addition, the building history
of the site has been researched and the site visited and
examined in its present condition. The information is
analyzed to determine if a Stage IB archaeological survey
should or should not be required, and an appropriate recom-

mendation is made. A Stage IB_archaeological survey will

be required if the site has the possibility of yielding

lpaugher, et al. 1982, p. 72ff.
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significant archaeological materials.

The research for this study was conducted at The
New York Public Library, Avery Library (Columbia University),
The University Museum Library (Philadelphia), The New York
Historical Society, The New York City Landmarks Preservation
Commission, The Buildings Department of the City of New
York (Municipal Building), in addition to the authors’

perscnal libraries.



TOPOGRAPHY

From map 1 of The Landmark Commission's 1982 preparatory
study for a predictive model, as well as Viele's 1865 and
1874 maps and others, we can see that before the land forms
were altered, a stream ("DeVoor's Mill Stream"™) flowed
from what is now Central Park towards the East River, crossing
Block 1327 from the the corner of 54th Street and Third
Avenue on the north, and exiting the block at the middle
of 53rd Street on the south. It is the presence of this
stream, in this case on the project site itself, that has
resulted in the designation of the project area as having
"high potential" for prehistoric remains. (See plate 1.)

On the Viele maps as well as the Dripps 1854 map,
the stream is visible. (See plate 4.) The area was originally
rather rocky, although no outcrop appears on the site itself.
On the Bluebook map of the area, the land around the stream
just to the northwest of the project site was shown as
swampy. (See plate 3.)

| The stream is now entirely underground; the land is
now quite flat. In that part of midtown, all traces of

the original topography have been erased. The site itself



is completely level except at the back of lot 44 and is
covered with building rubble. At the time of the site
visit on March 2, 1984, 212 E. 54th Street was still stand-
ing. (See plates 6, 7, and 8.)

The only other feature of the site was a low area
at the back of lot 44, 210 East. 54th Street. This low
area was apparently part of the back yard on that lot.
It contained three trees, each approximately 12 inches
in diameter. The low area extended along the side of the
one-story extension of the building on lot 43, and along
the back edge of the large building at 213 East 53rd Street.
The depression was only about 1 foot wide along those edges
and the original extent at that grade éould not be determined
because of the building rubble over the site. The lowered
area was about 6 feet below grade. Whether the original
yard of lot 44 was all at that level could not be determined
from either the on-site visit or the core borings. (See

plate 7.)

The drilling cores show 3 different strata above
the bedrock: working from the modern surface downwards, stratum
F is miscellaneous £ill, stratum S is sand, and stratum

M is silt. The £ill contained sand, gravel and rock in

‘addition to demolition debris. "0ld foundation walls™

were found in borings #11 and #12, at the edge of 1lots



46/47 and on lot 4.2  (See plates 13 and 14.)

Cores #1 and.#Z were placed on lot 44, core #1 in
the area of the building and core #2 in the area of the
yard. Core #1 revealed brick frdgments and sand to 7 feet
below grade. Core #2 showed fill to 12 feet below grade;
wood, brick and concrete were in the sample. {See plates
9, 10 and 11.)

Core #3P, at the edgo of lots 44 1/2/45, showed traced
labeled "slightly organic" at 25 feet below the surface,
at the edge of the silt/sand. This core was near the path
of the old stream bed.?> (See plates 9 and 12,)

The locations of the cores and sections of sample
cores are shown on diagrams attached. (See plates 9, 10,

11, 12, 13 and 14.)

2Meuser, Rutledge, Johnston & DeSimone 1983: 4-5, plan B-1.
3Meuser, Rutledge, Johnston & DeSimone 1983,
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PREHISTORY

Prehistoric occupation in the northeast and New York
City area has been divided into the following periods: Paleo-
~Indian, 10,500 - 8000 B.C., Archaic, 8000 - 1300 B.C.,
Transitional, 1300 - 1000 B.C., and Woodland, 1000 B.C. -
historic occupation. The Archaic and Woodland periods
have been subdivided into Early, Middle, and Late phases
as follows: Early Archaic, 8000 - 6000 B.C., Middle Archaic,
6000 - 4000 B.C., Late Archaic, 4000 - 1300 B.C., Early
Woodland, 1000 - 300 B.C., Middle wWoodland, 300 B.C. -

1000 A.D.,, Late Woodland, 1000 A.D. - European contact,

Each of these periods is characterized by particular

settlement types. Paleo-Indian sites are often along areas

of low, swampy ground or on very high, protected areas.?

"Within New York City, Paleo-Indian remains have been excavated

at the Port Mobile site on Staten Island, and worked stone
implements of Paleo-Indian type have been found at additional
locations ~within that borough.5 Although Paleo-Indian

materials have not yet been discovered in Manhattan, some

4Ritchie 1980:7.
S1bid,: pp. xvii f£. and map, pp..4f.
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portions of the island were, in the recent past, of the
topographic type favored by the Paleo-Indian hunters.
Thus, the City Archaeologist's predictive model lists the
Collect Pond area in lower Manhattan and Washington Heights
in the north as being probable areas for Paleo-Indian remains.®

The project area does not fall into either of the
topographic categories that were known to have been favored
by the Paleo-Indians. However, it must be remembered that
the topography of Manhattan and its surrounding region
have not been constant. The discovery of the remains of
land-based megafauna such as mammoth and mastodon on the
Atlantic Ocean floor along the Continental Shelf opposite
the New York - New Jersey sea coast! serves as a reminder
that the geography of the New York area has changed since
antiquity, and that microhabitats such as the stream that
flowed through the project area may have been radically
different during the earlier periods of prehistory. 1In
this context, it is noteworthy that the contours of the
top of bedrock within the project area indicate a course
for the stream that is approximately 80 feet southwest
of the stream course indicated on the 1898 Bromley Atlas.8

(See plate 5.)

The Early Archaic was characterized by small hunting

6Baugher et al. 1982:10.

gChesler 1982:20. '

Mueser, Rutledge, Johnston & DeSimone 1983: Drawings 2
and C-1.
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camps. According to the Landmarks Commission study for
a city-wide archaeological predictive model, such sites
do not have great archaeological visibility, nor are they
likely to be associated with particulaf land forms.?

Finds from other portions of the U.S. northeast indicate
that during the Middle Archaic there was a large increase
of population. As vyet, there is little evidence of this
time pericd in the New York City region and thus it is
especially important to watch for remains from this era.
Discoveries of Middle Archaic components are necessary
in order to define occurance-characteristics and increase
the accuracy of future predictions of site occurance.

For the Late Archaic, sites are most likely teo be
found in littoral areas, which makes the study area an
unlikely place to find remains of this period.10

Littoral areas and the zones along major inland water
ways such as the Hudson are known to have been settled
during Transitional times. Stone projectile points of
Transitional type have been found in northern Manhattan,

in the Inwood/Washington Heights district.1ll

As yet, there
is not a large enough body of information to accurately
predict Transitional site occurance within New York City

in anything except the most general terms.

:glgaugher et al. 1982: 10.

Baugher et al. 1982: 10-11.
Ritchie 1980:150-178 for general characteristics and distri-
bution of Transitional remains.,
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In the Woodland period, many different kinds of settle-
ments existed. Permanent and semi-permanent settlements,
villages, as well as seasonal campsites and food gather-
ing/processing stations are characteristic. Agriculture
was practiced, although this development may date only
to the end of the Late Woodland period, following the first

contact with Europeans.12

Shellfish collecting sites at
tidal inlets are particularly well representated in this
period, although this may simply be a reflection of the
fact that the tidal zones were less likely to have been
disturbed by subsequent city development than were inland
areas.

In the mid-17th century, high hills near streams,
rivers and agricultural fields, and fishing places were
favored by the Indians for settlement. Thus, the project
area can be identified as a potential Late Woodland settlement
site by virtue of its location on a water course.

At the time of European contact and Dutch settlement,
Manhattan was occupied by Munseé—speaking Delaware groups:
the Canarsee, who occupied western Long Island and probably
controlled southern and possibly eastern Manhattan, and
other Indian groups, whose territory included the northern

portions of the island.l3 Until recently, the Indians

of northern Manhattan had been identified as the Reckgawawanks;

iZCeci 1982: 5-36.
37rigger 1978:214, fig. 1.
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Robert Grumet has now placed this group at Haverstraw in
Rockland County.14
The East River islands were owned by the Mareckawick

group of the Cana:see15

and it seems reascnable to suppose
that this same group controlled Manhattan's east coast
as well., There are no records of Indian sites in the vicinity
of the project area, either along the river or inland.
Indeed, no Indian séttlements or camps are known along
the entire East River frontage of Manhattan from Corlear's
Hook below the Williamsburg Bridge to 105th Street. Bolton
has suggested that this is likely to be the result of poor
recording and a lack of interest in Indian affairs on the
part of the early city's surveyors, rather than an accurate
reflection of prehistoric settlement patterns.16

According to Bolton, temporary or seasonal fishing
camps would have been likely along the major river shores
and streams of Manhattan, particularly on the island's
sheltered east side.l’ The interior of Manhattan, especially
in the middle gortions of the island, was not likely to
have been much occupied., This is due to the combined factors
of a relatively rugged terrain and a relatively limited
supply of wildlife (itself a result of the restricted area

of the island). Areas along stream courses are likely

14Grumet 1982.
15B01ton 1920:238F.
16golton 1922:67.
17B01ton 1922:61.
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to havg been the only exceptions to this general rule that
focuses settlement along the island's coast.

The project area was slightly more than a block west
of the inland route that the later prehistoric Indians
are said to have used to travel to trade at Fort Amsterdam.
This pathway, termed the Wickquasgeck Road (also Wieckquaes-
geck/Weckquaesgeek), was first mentioned by David de Vries
in 1642; Bolton associated it with the historic 01d Albany
Post Road.l8 The route was described in detail by the
surveyor John Randal in 1808/10. 1In the vicinity of the
project area, the route took the following course: at
50th Street, the road was positioned approximately at mid-block
between Third and Second Avenues. From there, it turned
abruptly east, crossing Second Avenue below 52nd Street.
Between 53rd and 54th Streets, the road cut along the western
third of the block between Second and First Avenues. Moving
uptown, the road crossed Second Avenue again at 62nd Street
and reentered Third Avenue at 66th Street. It crossed
Park Avenue approximately at 80/8lst Streets, going from
there towards the northwest in the direction of St. Nicholas
Avenue and Harlem.

In conclusion, because of its location along an old
stream course, the project area may be identified as having
a high potential for use as a Woodland Period temporary

fishing or hunting station. It does not seem likely that

18Grumet 1981:59; Bolton 1922:55 and 65f.
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it would have been selected for more permanent or larger
scale Woodland Period occupation. .There is not sufficient
data to allow predictions regarding its use for settlement
in pre-Woodland periods to be made with any reasonable
degree of certainty. Remains of the Woodland, Transitional
and Archaic Periods, if any exist, will be found in the
earth layer identified in the core report as the "Fill
Stratum, Stratum F;" remains from the Paleo-Indian period
would be possible in either Stratum F or in the "Sand Stratum,
Stratum S™ as indicated in the subsurface investigation/site
core report.19 (See plates 10 through 14.) Of course,
the potential of the project areas as a source of prehistoric
remains 1s entirely dependant on its having significant

undisturbed areas.

lgMueser, Rutledge, Johnston & DeSimone 1983,
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HISTORICAL PERIODS

The study for the predictive model divides the historical
periods of Manhattan into six phases: 1609-1664, 1664-1720,
1720-1783, 1783-1815, 1815-1865, and 1865-1900.

In our study area, only woodlands and farms occupied
the region in the earlier two phases.

On fhe map drawn by Nicolls and dating to 1664-1668,
it can been seen that the project area is noted as woodland,
although occupation is noted on Hogg's (now Roosevelt)
Island. Harlem Villege is shown to the north of the project
area and the settlement of Nieuw Amsterdam is far to the
south. It is hard bécause of the inaccuracies in the map
to designate the precise location of the project area. (See
plate 2.)

The project area was shown on the "Original Grants
and Farms" map in Stokes as the Brevoort and 0dell Farm.
It was described as follows:

This farm of about 40 acres, irregular in outline

comprised all of the DuFour grant west of old

Eastern Post Road and all of Andries Anderson

farm west of the road., The latter parcel was

conveyed to David Davore, IV, who died in 1780

leaving it to his daughter Ann, who married succes-
sively ggaraham Brevoort (1788) and Jacob 0Odell

{1795).
' - PLEASE RETURN T0 ™.
20 LUSRARY
Stok 1915-1918, 6: pl. 82,
o ' g LANDMARKS PRESERVATION
13 _ COMMISSION



On both the Morton map of 1811 and the Blue Book of
1815, this area can be clearly seen still to have many
farms. However, no farmhouse is indicated in our study
area on these maps. (See plate 3.)

The Eastern Post Road bisected block 1346 (directly
east of 1327, the block of the project site), and on what
was to become 54th Street, two hundred feet east of the
present Second Avenue, there was a tavern kept by David
Davore prior to 1768. According to Valentine's Manual
of 1853 the tavern was built in 1712, and Stokes reports
that the tavern was called "Dean's" on the Colles' map
of 1789. 1In about 1805 the tavern was taken over by Alexander
Cato, and the tavern was known as Cato's until it was razed
in 1853. However, until at least 1815, the area was still
primarily farmland.

In the next phase, 1815-1865, the shape of this area
began to change. The western edge of the project area
is Third Avenue, and it is the history of that avenue which
may reveal something about the early history of the site.
Third Avenue was authorized by the Common Council in 1815
to be built from the Bowery to the Harlem River. The Council
put forth the following specifications:

60 feet wide, including gutters; 40 feet in the

center to be gravelled nine to eighteen inches,

according to the nature of the soil over which

the road will pass. An arch across the rocad
should not exceed one-half inch per foot to the

14



middle of the road.2l
In the 1820's Third Avenue was macadmized making the étretch
from 28th Street to Harlem Bridge "one of the most magnificent
drives in the world."22

In the 1830's the "Third Avenue Trotting Course" was
popular. Thomas Devoe described it thus:

Every fine afternoon (Sundays included) the tired,
panting, and foaming steeds, rushing in from
Harlem or Cato's, in two's, three's, fives; and
I have seen more than twenty often appearing
as if they were "all in a heap." There was no
such road in the United States at the Third Avenue
for a "trot." From almost one end to the other,
through the centre of it, a smoothly-graded Maca~
damized road was laid, while on each side appeared
a well-beaten track, usually prefered by the
"knowing trotters," and the whole kept in the
most perfect order. It was, however, a dangerous
one for a pleasant family ride, as there were
many - especially when quite late in the day
- half-drunken men and boys, in their crazy excitement
to get ahead, who made no bones (or rather, sometimes
broken ones) of driving a shaft into your horse,
or their wheels against or even over you, 3nd
curse you in the bargain for being in the way.2

Not many years later the avenue was paved with cobble-
stones, routes for omnibusses were franchised, and the
final deathblow was signalled for the "Trotting Course”
by the laying of the horsecar trolley tracks in 1852.
At this stage in the growth of New York City, Third Avenue

up to 86th Street had become a main artery of its development.

2lgtokes 1915-1918,5:1733.

22gtokes 1915-1918,5:1730. See 1911 edition of Encyclopaedia

%Eitangica Vol. xvii:190 for a description of macadamizing.
Devoe 1862: 72.
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Four and five story tenements were built along the avenues
(First, Second, Third) and brick row houses suitable for
middle-class families were built along the side streets.24
By 1860, the East Side residences were built-up to 59th
Street,

After the Civil War the brownstone era began on the
east gide; these were the buildings that were to become
the roominghouses of the early 1900's. The project site
was built with tenement buildings rather than brownstones
however,

The biggest change to Third Avenue, of course, came
with the advent of the Elevated Railroad, built during
the last half of 1878. As Edmund T. Delaney described
it:

Light and sunshine were shut out and replaced

by soot and noise, diret and dinginess. Third

Avenue ... became street slums with cold water

flats, pawn shops, bars and grills with agcasional
delicatessens, vegetable and meat shops.

The neighborhood itself would seem to bé a typical
New York mix, particularly after the El was built. Italians,
Germans, Irish, and Jews lived back to back, side by side.
Breweries would seem to have been one major industry (there
were at one time two on the block of the project site),

but Steinway's first piano factory was nearby as well,

24Lockwood 1979: pagsim,
25Delaney 1965: 23.
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on Fourth Avenue fPark) between 52nd and 53rd Streets,
before it was moved to Astoria in the 1870's.

Finally, DeVoor's Mill stream2® cuts through Block
1327, across the project site. The stream was a major
source of health problems in the early and mid-nineteenth
century and so was in 1871 finally forced through a nine-foot
sewer that empties into the East River at Turtle Bay (49th
Street). Even in recent times, the sewer has backed up
and flooded basements, and when this has happened, it has
been possible to actually catch fish in a basement on 53rd

Street.27

26The name DeVoor is a variant of Davore, DuFour, and possibly
gyen Devoe, which are cited in the passages above.
Delaney 1965: 18.
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BUILDING HISTORY

Much of the history of this site has to be determined
from altases, since the building records for the initial
construction of the buildings on this site cannot be located.
In addition, there are no records of the new building numbers
for any of these buildings, so the records in the Municipal
Archives could not be referenced for missing original con-
struction information. Finally, no records at all for

lot 102 (1 1/2) could be located.

In 1815, the project area was farm land belonging
to Jacob Odell, No building was shown on the site at that
time, 28 (See plate 3.)

In 1854, there were apparently four structures on
the block, although none of the four was within the project
area, (See plate 4.) The stream was still indicated as
crossing the block across the project site.29

More structures were shown on the block in L§§7.30

Lots 1, 1 1/4, 1 1/2, 2, 3, 4, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, and

28p1ye Book, plate 11.
29Dripps 1854, )
30Dripps 1867: plate 12.
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48 were all shown having structures of some kind. The
buildings were on the front of all lots except 3, and 4,
where they appear to be halfway towards the center of the
lot. Lot l.was the only lot of the project site entirely
filled by a structure at this time. The J. Kress brewery
was on the block at this time, east of the project site,
as was an Episcopal Church.

By 1879, according to the Bromley and Robinson atlas3!
lots 3 1/2 and 45 1/2 had been created in the project area.
The extents of the buildings on the project site at this
time were not indicated on the maps. None of the buildings
on the block were identified as brick structures at this
time. Several icehouses were identified elsewhere on the
block and here the J. Rress Brewery was shown on block
258 to the north, rather than on block 257, as was the
Hoffman Oriental Brewery.

The information in the Bromley and Robinson atlas
of 1879 may be somewhat out of date for the project site,
since the cornice of 212 E, 54th Street was labeled "J. Hoff-
mann, 1878" (See plate 8.} This brick building was still
standing at the time the site was visited for this report.

The Bromley atlas of 189032 idéntified all the structures
on the project site as brick. The 1891 Bromley atlas33

indicated the number of stories of the brick structures.

3éPlate 19.
32401, 3, pl. 4,
33Plate 21,
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This latter atlas indicated structures of the same height
as the buildings democlished on the project site in 1983
and 1984, so we can reasonably assume that the brick structures
on the site were built by 1890, but presumably were not
built significantly before 1879.

The following lot by lot descriptions are based on
the atlas information as well as building records where
they exist, and on the record photographs of the site taken
in 1981, as well as the developer's survey. (See plates

5, 15, 16, and 17.)
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Block 1327, Lot 1, 877 Third Avenue

The structure ﬁn lot 1 was a 4-story brick building
which filled almost the entire lot in 1890. The lot measured
25 feet wide by 59 feet 6 inches deep. The 1890 Bromley
atlas showed a small open area at the northeast corner
of the lot, which existed on the 1982 survey plan as well
(See plate 17).

In 1909 the lot was owned by one Mr. George McGovern
who was resident at the site. The foundations of the building
were described as extending 10 feet below the curb. The
basement ceiling was level with the curb. A store was
on the first floor; the second floor had furnished rooms
and the top two floors housed 2 families each accofding
to a building permit. At that time permission was requested
to construct a saloon at the 53rd Street side of the building.

In 1922, the ground floor store was divided into two.

By the end of the building's life, it contained 3
stores: a cigaret shop, a deli, and a dress store. (See

plate 16.)
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Block 1327, lot 1 1/4 (101), 205 East 53rd Street

By 1890, the front part of this lot was occupied by
a 3-story brick structure with a basement that was partially
above grade. The lot was irreqularly shaped (see plates
5 and 17); the building faced 20 feet 3 inches on 53rd
Street and extended 24 or 25 feet towards the back of the
lot.

In 1936, the building was described as having a cellar
used for storage and a semi-subterranean basement called
a "vacant printer's shop." Above this shop was a vacant
apartment and a one-family dwelling on the upper two floors.
Cellar depth was variously described as between 7 feet
and19 feet below the sidewalk in the plans filed at this
time.

In 1941, a vault was constructed in the basement and
a cellar exit added on the sidewalk surface. At that time
the cellar was described as B feet 6 inches below street
grade.

The irregularly shaped backyard on this lot existed
up to the time of the building's destruction. At that
time, the storefront was occupied by a messenger service.

(See plate 16.)

22
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Block 1327, lot 1 1/2 (102), 207 East 53rd Street

No building records could be located for this site.-
Like lot 1 1/4, by 1890,. the front part of this lot was
occupied by a 3~story brick structure with a basement that
was partially above grade. This lot was also irregularly
shaped (See plates 5 and 17.) The building extended 20
feet 3 inches along 53rd Street and about 24 feet towards
the back of the lot.

In the Hyde Atlas (1906, corrected to 1950), the area
behind this almost square building was shown as a yard.
However a "basement frame extension" was removed by developers
at site preparation. (See plate 17.) Thus, apparently
between 1950 and 1883, the area behind the 3-story structure
was disturbed and built upon. How deep the foundations
of that extension were cannot be determined.

At the time of deme¢lition, the storefront of this

building was occupied by a plant shop. (See plate 16.)
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Block 1327, lot 2, 879 Third Avenue

By 1891, this lot, 25 feet by 61 feet 11 inches, had
a four-story building on it which filled the then described
lot. According to building permit records, the structure
had been built by 1874, since the building on adjacent
lot 3 was described in the building records as having a
party wall on the south at that time,

In 1905, plumbing alterations were done. In that
year, the cellar was described as 8 feet 2 inches below
grade, with 4 stéries above. The lot was shown at- that
time as 100 feet 4 inches by 25 feet 3 inches wide and
the building was described as 55 feet long and as wide
as the lot. Behind it was an extension about 8 feet deep
and somewhat less than the width of the lot. A stairway
led from the yard to the basement at the edge of this exten-
sion. The yard was shown as being in the northeast corner
of the lot which included by this time an irreqularly shaped
area behind the building (See plates 5 and 17.) The
corner yard measured about 11 feet 11 inches wide by about
37 feet long.

In 1930, plumbing and facade changes were made, but

no new information about extent or depth of the building
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were given.

In 1940, a hollow concrete block extension was built
in the back portion of the lot, filling the entire remaining
lot. The extension was described as being built onto a
56-foot deep building, so the apparent construction in
1905 behind the four-story building was either destroyed
or incorporated into the addition. The addition was built
on footings set into excavated trenches, the depths of
which were not described.

The building was described in 1940 as having a cellar,
a restaurant on the first floor, and 2 apartments per floor
on the second through fourth floors. After the extension
was built, the upper floors were to remain vacant.

In 1963, the building, then occupied by the Famous
Food House Inc., was described as having a cellar 8 feet
6 inches below the level of the floor above.

At the time of its destruction,the store was occupied

by a card and gift store. (See plate 16.)

25



Block 1327, lot 3, 881 Third Avenue

This lot is 16 feet 5 inches wide by 100 feet deep.
In 1874, it was owned by M. Sampter, who did not live at
the site. The building, 16 feet 8 inches (sic) by 55 feet,34
had a cellar, the floor of which was replaced in 1874,
The buiilding was then described in the building records
as having four stories, At that time, the northern
wall was described as independent and the southern wall
as a party wall. Thus, lot 2 had been built upon by 1874
but lot 3 1/2 had not.

By 1891, the atlases show a 5-story brick building
on the lot, 16 feet 5 inches by 55 feet. Whether this
building is the same as the one described in 1874 as having
four stories cannot be determined. {See plate 5.)

In 1931, the building was described as 5 stories and
16 feet 5 inches by 55 feet and in 1940, the cellar is
described at 4 feet below grade at the rear of the building.
By 1943, this building was joined with the buildings on
lot 3 1/2 (883 Third Ave.) and lot 4 (885 Third Ave.) into
a single building, the street floor of which was used as

a restaurant. The cellar contained storage and kitchen

34These dimensions are according to building records.
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facilities. 881 Third Avenue had 3 apartments on floor
2 and 4 apartments on floors 3 through 5. The building
was owned by a holding company.

At the time of demolition, this lot contained a cne-story
brick and concrete block extension which ran behind this
building as well as behind the buildings on the northern
2 lots. It may have been constructed in 1943 or perhaps
later (see lot 4 below).

At the time of demolition, the ground floor housed
what appears to have been a restaurant. (See plates 15

and 16.)
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Block 1327, lot 3 1/2, 883 Third Avenue

The lot is 16 feet 5 inches wide and 100 feet deep.
The 1890°'s at}ases indicate that a 5-story brick building
16 feet 5 inches wide by 55 feet was on the site; this
building had presumably not yet been built in 1874. (See
lot 3 below and plate 5.)

Scanty building records indicate that in 1932, a boiler
room was added to the cellar and a flue added to the rear
of the building, extending 1 1 /2 feet into the yard and
set 4 feet below grade.

In 1936, the building was still 16 feet 5 inches wide
by 55 feet. .The yard was still in place behind the building.

In 1943, this building was combined with those on
lots 3 and 4, and the ground floor was a restaurant.

At the time of demolition a one-story brick and concrete
block extension covered the back part of the lot. Neither
the construction date nor the depth of basement can be
determined, although it was perhaps built in 1943 (see
lot 4 below). The ground floor had been occupied by what
was apparently a restaurant at the time of demclition.

(See plates 15 and 16,)
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Block 1327, lot 4, 885 Third Avenue

This 5-story 0ld law Eenement was erected by the 1890's,
when it appears on the atlases as 17 feet 2 inches wide
by 55 feet on a lot 100 feet deep.

In 1916, the building was described as 17 feet 6 inches
wide by 60 feet and was owned by Arthur Lyon of Philadelphia.
At that time plumbing work was done. The building was
described as 5 stories with a cellar, and the cellar ceiling

was "level with curb.“35

Apparently the grade of the vard
was lower than the grade on the street side of the house,
for the cellar had a window overlooking the yard and the
cellar floor was 3 inches lower than yard level,36

In 1852, this building was part of a single connected
structure defined as 879-885 Third Avenue {(lots 2, 3, 3
1/2, and 4). 885 Third Avenue had a store on the ground
floor, connected across all 4 lots, and apartments on floors
2 through 5. The building was still described as 17 feet
2 inches by 55 feet; however permit 1005 in 1943 described
the addition of a new building in the rear. This is the

only record which mentions an extension behind lot 3, 3

35

36Alteration document 454, question 13.

Alteration permit comments, point 3.
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1/2, or 4. ©Perhaps then, 1943 is the construction date
of this extension, although other evidence, such as the
Hyde atlas, which was supposedly corrected to 1950, and
other building records of similar date, do not include
this extension.

In any“event, the back 1l-story addition did exist
at the time of demolition. No records of its basement
or foundation depth can be found. The plan showing the
site before destruction shows a small yard, about 5 feet
by 10 feet at the back of the 5-story structure on lot
4, around which the extension was built. At the time of
demolition, the ground floor was occupied by a Foto Rush

and a Dragoc Shoe Repair Shop. (See plates 15 and 17.)
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Block 1327, lot 43, 212 East 54th Street

No¢ building records for the years prior to 1976 could
be located for this lot in the Buildings Department. The
lintel, however, said J. Hoffmann, 1878, presumably the
date of construction. In Robinson's 1885 atlas the Hoffmann
Oriental Brewery was shown to be on this lot as well as
adjacent lots to the east.

The lot is 25 feet wide by 100 feet 5 inches deep.
In the 1890's atlases, the building is shown as a 5-story

brick structure occupying the whole lot. (See plate 5.)

However, the Hyde atlas (1906 corrected to 1950) shows

a 5-story building 65 feet long and the width of the lot
with a l-story extension filling the remainder of the lot.
That is how the building looked, 5 stories with a l-story
extension behind, at the time of demolition; the 5-story
building was described as 72 feet deep and the extension
as 28 feet 5 inches deep in the developer's plan of the
site, differing slightly from the dimensions given in the
Hyde atlas.

No information on basement depth is known. The extension
floor appeared to be a fuli story below street grade -

about 8 feet - at the time of the site visit. The last

31



occupant of the storefront was Charrettes.

15.)
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Block 1327, lot 44, 210 East 54th Street

This lot was occupied by a building that was indicated
as being to be 4 stories tall, situated on the front 50
feet of a lot 100 feet 5 inches by 25 feet wide in the
19th century atlases.

In May 1905, the building was in fact described as
being 25 feet by 50 feet and four stories high on a lot
25 feet by 100 feet.37 The brick building was described
as a tenement having 18-foot deep foundations. Above the
cellar, the basément and first floor were used as stores
and the second, third, and fourth floors housed either
6 or 8 families.

The only other building record, from 1960, gives no
useful information of .size, extent or use of the building.

At the time of demolition, the building was apparently
the same size as when it had been constructed, leaving
a 25 foot by 50 foot backyard apparently undisturbed. (See
plates 15 and 17.)

37Alteration permit 1152.
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Block 1327, lot 44 1/2, 208 East 54th Street

Although this lot designation exists on some of the
19th century atlases, it is described and filed in the
buildings department as part of lot 45, so it will be described

below in this report with lot 45.
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Block 1327, lot 45, 895 Third Avenue
204 and 208 East 54th Street

No early building records could be found for this
lot.

In the 19th century atlases, the lot is shown as 25
feet 5 inches wide and 110 feet deep, fronting on Third
Avenue., The lot was divided in a 25 foot 5 inch wide by
55 foot long 5-story brick structure, backed by a one story
extension on the east, along 54th Street, and a 5-story
extension behind that, each 25 feet five inches wide and
each approximately 16 feet‘deep. According to the 1881
building record of lot 46, at least the 5-story structure
fronting Third Avenue was in place, since the lot 46 structure
had a party wall on the north. In many of the atlases
the address 204 East 54th Street is associated with the
l-story structure and 208 East 54th Street with the second
5-story structure. (See plate 5.)

In fact, the 5-story structure at 208 East 54th Street
appeared in the record photographs of the developer to
be an independent tenement building, which is probably
why the lot on which it was situated appeared as 44 1/2
in some of the 19%th century maps. (See plate 15.) However,
there is no way to trace its path to inclusion into lot
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45,

By 1952, the lot was described as 25 feet 5 inches
by 110 feet with a 5-story building filling the lot. It
is called then an old-law tenement. The building had a
cellar which extended the entire lot and was used for storage.
No depth for the cellar was given. Above the first floor
storefront were 4 floors of apartments. The cellar plan
indicated a shared cellar with lot 46 at this time,

At the time of destruction, 208 East 54th Street was
occupied by Sabring Reader and Advisor and Fierro's Cheese
& Delicacies, 204 East 54th Street by a carpenter shop,
and the ground floor of 895 Third Avenue by a health food

store. (See plate 15.)
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Block 1327, lot 46, 893 Third Avenue

This lot had apparently not been built on in 1876,
when 891 Third Avenue (lot 47, below) had an independent
northern wall. 1In 1881, a 5-story brick building was on
the site. The building was 25 feet wide by 50 feet on
a lot 25 feet wide by 105 feet deep. The building had
a l-story extension added in 1881 with brick foundations
4 feet deep. Later plans indicate that the cellar under
the 5-story original structure was not extended under the
addition., The depth of the original cellar was not given
in the records.

The Bromley 1890 plan shows a narrow section of the

lot undeveloped and an approximately 5 foot "concrete yard"

is shown behind the structure in the developer's 1983 plan

{See plate 17.)

In the Robinson 1885 atlas this building is identified
as part of the Friel and Hand Furniture & Bedding Company,
which also occupied buildings on lots 47 and 48.

In 1912 building records a sub-cellar was mentioned
but no dimensions or depth was giwven.

In 1970, the building records indicate that floors

2 through 5 of the building were apartments, the first

37
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floor was occupied by a restgurant, and the cellar extended
under the full lot, but at unknown depth.38

The developer's site plan indicates that this building
was joined with that on lot 45 at the time of demolition,
which it presumably had been since at least 1952, as noted
above. At the time of democlition, the store on the ground

floor was occupied by "The 0ld Stand." (See plate 15.)

381n a 1952 plan of lot 45, the cellar of lot 46 was shown
shared with that of lot 45,
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Block 1327, lot 47, 891 Third Avenue

The earliest building record for this site is from
1876, when the 25 foot by 110 foot lot was occupied by
a 4-story brick building 25 feet wide by 55 feet, with
15-foot deep foundations. The ground floor was occupied
by a store and one family lived in the 3 floors above.
At this time a 2-story 25 foot by 50 foot extension was
added in the back filling the lot to within 5 feet of the
property line (see small areas behind the building in Bromley
1890 and plate 17.) At the same time, the upper floors
were modified to be 6ccupied by 2-families. The owner,
Isaac Rosenfeld, alsc owned 889 Third Avenue and used the
same architect (John Muller, Jr.) and c¢rew to renovate
both buildings (see lot 48 below).

By 1884, this building was connected on all floors
to 889 Third Avenue, in order to be occupied by a furniture

store.39

The subsequent development of this site will
be discussed under lot 48 below, except to note that at
demolition this building housed Corinna Donuts on the ground

floor. (See plate 15.)

397his store, Friel and Hand Furniture & Bedding Company
is shown in the Robinson 1885 atlas.
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Block 1327, lot 48, 889 Third Avenue

The building record of 1877 described 889.Third Avnue
as a lot 25 feet by 100 feet deep with a four-story brick
building 25 feet by 55 feet, with %%;ﬁoogugeep foundations,
according to the applications, or 8 feét éeep, according
to the plans. A store was on the ground floor and dwellings
above, The building was owned by Isaac Rosenfeld, who
added a 2-story extension 25 feet by 50 feet in this year,
with 4-foot deep foundations. This left a small open area
at the back of the site. (See Bromley 1890 and plate 17.)

In 1884, this building was connected on all floors
with that on lot 47 to make a furniture store, as discussed
above. The foundations were described as 7 feet deep and
the building records said here that a one-story extension
was raised to two. This contradicts the 1877 report where
the extension was already described as having two stories.
Isaac Rosenfeld still owned the building, which was said
to be occupied by tenants above the store.

In 1891, the top floor was modified for business
purposes, and tenants no longer lived in the building.
An elevator was added in 1891 as well.

In 1894, the showroom was modified. 1In this application,
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the foundations were described as being 10 feet deep.
The building was still occupied by a furniture store.
The building continued to be showrooms, stores, and factories;
in 1922, a restaurant was placed on part of the ground
floor. This use continued until site destruction.

When a sprinkler system was added in 1964 the cellar
(subbasement) was shown at 6 feet below grade with a basement
above it 8 feet 8 inches below grade, totalling 14 feet
8 inches of subsurface excavation below the entire building.

At the time of destruction 889 Third Avenue was occupied

by Clancy's bar. (See plate 15.)
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ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In general, this project site is not likely to have
significant historical remains. Although there are some
undisturbed backyard areas, water and éewage lines were
in the area by the time the project site was built upon,40
so there would be no cisterns, privies or other similar
features related to buildings on the project site. None
of the historical structures on the site is of particular
significance, either in terms of function or association
with significant historical events or individuals. There
is no special ethnic group associated with the area nor
other archaeologically retrievable social information of
particular importance.

There is however potential for significant prehistoric
remains, as discussed above, which are of special importance
since nothing is known archaeologically about the pre-~-history
of the areas.

Thus, each lot will be reviewed beiow to assess the

potential for testing for prehistoric remains.

40ceismar 1983: 4f; 19th century altases including those
of Bromley.
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Block 1327, lot 1: The foundations of this 4-story building
apparently extended 10 feet below the curb and the building
covered most of the lot. However, a small open area existed
in 1890 at the northeast corner of the lot and that yard
still existed on the 1983 survey plan of the site. It
measures about 2 feet by 6 feet and appears to connect
with the yard on lot 1 1/4 (10l1), discussed below. {See
plate 17.)

Block 1327, lot 1 1/4 (10l): This lot had a building filling
the front .width of the lot, extending back 24 or 25 feet.
The foundations were at least 7 feet deep.

The back yard of this irreqular lot was never built
upon. It was visible in 19th century plans and on the
developer's 1983 plan as well. The yard is approximately
12 feet by 20 feet and connects with the small open area

on lot 1 discussed above. (See plate 17,)

Block 1327, lot 1 1/2 (10é): The extent and depths of
basements of the structures covering this lot cannot be

determined.

Block 1327, lot 2: The 4-story building and l-story extension
on this site filled the lot. The foundations were 8 feet

6 inches below grade under the main building and there
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weréexcavatedtrenchesofLumnowndepthundertheextension. No

part of this lot was left undeveloped.

Bléck 1327, lot 3: The 5-story building on this lot had
foundations 4 feet below grade at the rear of the building.
The l-story extension behind the main building had foundations
0f unknown depth. The entire lot was developed at the

time of demolition.

Block 1327, lot 3 1/2: This lot had a 5-story building
with cellar of unknown depth in front of a l-story extension
with foundations of unknown depth., The yard behind the
original building, later covered by the extension, once
had a 1 1/2 foot flue at a depth of 4 feet at the western
edge of the yard. ©No part of the lot was undisturbed to

at least some depth at the time of demolition.

Block 1327, lot 4: This lot had a 5-story building with
an extension in the back. No depths can be determined
for the basements. A small yard, about 7 feet by 20 feet,
remained apparently undisturbed at the time of construction
of the extension and existed at the time of demolition.

(See plate 17.)

Block 1327, lot 43: The 5-story building and l1-story extension

behind on this lot had cellars of unknown depths, although

44



the ceiling of the extension's cellar was approximately
even with the curb and extended a full story below grade,
about 8 feet, according to visual observation. The entire

lot was built upon at the time of demolition.

Block 1327, lot 44: This lot had a building on the front
half. It was described as having 18 foot deep foundations,
Behind the building was a yard, approximately 50 feet by
25 feet, which apparently had not been built upon in historical

times. (See plate 17.)

Block 1327, lots 44 1/4 and 45: A cellar extended under
the two 5-story buildings and the l-story extension on
this lot. However, the depth of the cellar is unknown.

The whole lot was built upon in the 19th century.

Block 1327, lot 46: The S5-story building on this lot had
a cellar of unknown depth. The l-story extension behind
it had foundations 4 feet deep. All but the back edge
of the lot was covered by buildings. An approximately
5-foot deep yard spanned the back of the lot, abutting
the yard of lot 44, At the time of demolition, it was

covered by concrete. (See plate 17.)

Block 1327,lot 47: The foundations of the building on

the front half of this lot were 15 feet deep. The back
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part of the lot had an extension with foundations of unknown
depth. The back approximately 5 feet of the lot were a
yard abutting on the yvard of lot 44. At the time of demolition

it was covered by concrete. {See plate 17.)

Block 1327, lot 48: The foundations of the building on
the front half of this lot were 17 feet deep. The back
part of the lot had an extension with 4-foot deep foundations.
The back approximately 5 feet of the lot was a strip of
apparently undisturbed land abutting on the yard of lot
44. At the time of demolition it was covered by concrete.

(See plate 17,)

In reviewing the above information, it is c¢lear that
there are some potentially undisturbed areas of the site; the
yards and open spaces on lots 1 1/4 (101), 4, 44, 46, 47,
and 48. (See plates 5 and 17.) These areas offer an ideal
opportunity to test for remains of Amerindians, with partic-
ularly high probability of encountering materials of the
Late Woodland phase. Therefore, we recommend that archaeo-
logical testing be done in these areas. One five by five
foot excavation unit should be placed on the undisturbed
yard in lot 1 1/4 (10l1), one five by five foot excavation
unit should be placed on the undisturbed yard in lot 4,
and £wo five by five excavation units should be placed

on the adjacent undisturbed yard areas of lots 44, 46,
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47, and 48. This testing should allow sufficient exposure
to determine if any Amerindian depoéits remain undisturbed
on the site. As it happens, the areas are both on the
historical banks of the stream (lots 44, 46, 47, 48) as
well as slightly to the southwest, along the stream's possible
earlier course4l (lots 1 1/4(101) and 4). Considering
the project’s location within a modern, developed metropolis,
this distribution of undisturbed areas and excavation units
must be considered optimal in any attempt to recover a

dischronic occupational history of the proposed site,

4lgee above, p. 7.
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Site, looking south S Y

Site, looking west

Plate 6 Site views
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| General view, backyard area

Detail, low area at back
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Plate 7 Views of yard, lot 44
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Facade detail, building on lot 43

View from east, building on lot 43

Plate 8 Site views, building on lot 43
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MUESER, RUTLEDGE, JOHNSTON & UESIMONE-CONSULTING ENGINEERS o1 .4
mux wo. 5732
. BORING MO,
rOIECT 53rd at Third Project . surracE pLpv. 34.1.
Locarion _ NEW York, New York nes. gnor.Abu Arif
SAMPLE A
. PABONSs o BT | RO SAMPLE DESCRIPTION STRATA | som [05% | REMARKS
1030} 1D | 0.0’ 7-24 |Gray fine to coarse sand & brick Prilled ahead of
_ 2.0' | 18-13 |[fragments (Fi11) (sPsGP) ;aslggofrom 0.0
" 0 - -
Lost water
20 | 5.0' | 13-13 [Brick fragments, trace medium to 2 from 4.0° t0
7.0' | 15-12 |fine sand (FiN) ~ (GP) 30.0°,
NR |10.0' | 4-5 = [0
12.0' 3-2 ™y
NR [12.0! | Push
14.0°
30 {15.0' | 34-18 |Gray-brown c-f sand, sm rock 15 Dccasional hard
- 117.0' | 8-10 [fgmts, tr silt, brick drilling from 14.5
. ) ‘ (F{11) (SP-SM) to 19.0°'.
> :
= . 19
<2 | 4D |20.0' 4-7 |Green-gray clayey f-m sand, sm 20
<® 22.0" 7-14 |gvl, tr coarse sand, mica (SC)
=
5D |25.0' | 17-29 |Dk gray slightly mic silty fine | & |25
27.0' | 20-21 |sand, tr m-c sand, brn silt
) pockets, gravel, veg (SM)
. 29
6D |30.0' 0-0 ITop: Med gry & brn cl silt, sm 30 60, top: washed
32.0* | 12-14 |mic f sand, tr red si pkts (ML) | sample
Bot: Red-brn mic cl silt, some —
fine sand (ML) @ Telescoped 3" casing
) , 26 finto 4" casing,
70 {35.0' | 20-25 |Brown fine to medium sand, tr 0' to 40'.
37.0' | 25-31 |silt, gravel, mica (SP-SM) o
g
1400 4221 Kard drilling at
39.5' {top of rock)
FOR DESCRIPTION 4
OF ROCK CORE,
SEE SHEET NO. 2
50

Core 1

Pla%e 10

59

i ki e Tracem e

BORING No. 1




MUESER, RUTLEDGE, JOHNSTON & DESIMONE-CONSULTING ENGINEERS

suxer l oir4_

mnLE No._ 58732

Core 2

Plate 11

60

BORING NO.
PROIEET 53rd at Third Project surracE gLy, 33.7
LOCATION __NEW YOTK, New York azs. gnon. Ay Arif
- -
BAILY SAMPLE G
POGRES| MO, | DEFTH | ROWS/e- SAMPE DESCRIFTION STRATA | et | 3oy _ REMARIS
1030{ 10 | 0.0' | 4-3  [Gry-brn f-c sand, sm concrete, Drilled ahead of
2.0'| 7-6 [wood, silt, tr brick (Fi11)(SM) ggs;qg from 0.0°
2D | 5.0' | 7-7° |Wood & Concrete (Fil1) (GP) g 0ld telephone
7.0" | 37-25 | Tines at 5.0
Hard drilling
. from 6.5' to 7.5'.
30 [10.0* | 1-3  |Wood, trace fine to coarse sand | _, W10 Pushed casing _
12.0' | 3-5 : (F111) = ; from10.0' to16.0'.
L
P
| P luard dri174
4p (15.0° 5-6 Brn fine to coarse sand & gravel 18P eom 14 0.128
17.0' | 10-11 |with rock fgmts, some silt, tr Pliss .
mica ' (SM-GM) 47 (=% ¢
% : _ a 27
2 ; = 14
ped =] 50 {20.0° 8-21 |Gray-green fine to medium sand, v 1201 1
e 22.0' | 24-22 |some sandy silt lyrs, tr coarse _
o> . sand, gravel,rock fgmts & mica 2'3 i Soft drilling
<k : (SM) at23.0'. -
e o :
e | 6D [25.0° 9-27 (Top: Stiff red-brn silty clay, | CLAY |25
27.0' | 35-45" |some gravel, and’ rock fgmis, 25,5
fine to medium sand (cL) :
Bot: Brn mic f sand, sm silt, tr{SAND Telescoped 3"
medium to coarse sand (sM) 29° casing inside 4"
7D [30.0' | 10-17 IStiff brown mic clayey silt, sm 30 from28.0' to
32.0' | 22-25 “|fine sand : (ML) 38.0".
SILT
- 33
8D |35.0' | 20-27 |Gray-brown rock fgmts, sm coarse L 35 D: sample reco d
" 1418 37.0' | 49-74 |to fine sand, tr silt,mica (GP) | SAND = in 2nd gttempt.ver‘e
) Top of rock @ 37°',
- 40
45
FOR DESCRIPTION
OF ROCK CORE, =
"SEE'SHEET NO.2
BORING No. 2




'MUESER, RUTLEDGE YO IIDOCSIMONE-CONSULTING ENGINEERS surrr_ Ll ord
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rLe No. 5732
BOmING NO. 3P
SURPACE ZLXV, _34.5
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PROJECT .
LOCATION New York, New York . RES. ENGRA. Ahy Arif
DAILY ; asIe
PROGRESS| NO. | BEPTH | BoWi/e SAMPE DESCRIFTION STRATA | serna o - REMARXS
1315 | 1 0.0V 1 5-9 Concrete famis, some Tine to
-1 2.0' | 12-15 foarse sand, tr brick, wood, Ezlll;dfigﬁag gf
iglass (F;]]) (GP) to 150"
2D | 5.0' | 9-12 PBrick fomts & fine to coarse 2
. 7.0" | 18-22 (sand, some wood, tr concrete
= (Fi11) (SP & GP}| =
—= : = -
Ea L Obstruction from
30 |10.0' | 41-42 Brn-gry fine to coarse sand, sm 10 9.0' to 10.0'.
12.0" | 13-18 {rock fgmts tr-brick, m1ca, silt
0730 | :
© | 4D {15.0' [ 19-13 [Brown siity fine sand, tr coarse 15
17.0' | 11-8  |sand, gravel, cinders, mica 75
(Fiﬂ) (SM) 52
56
50 [20.0' | 14-18 [Gray-green silty fine sand, tr 20 | 34 1DrilTed ahead of
- 22.0" | 13-18 Imedium to coarse sand, mica (SM)}] o casing from 15.0'
-— = 1
= < to 42.0',
a 7} ~ .
> - s .
= [ 6D {25.0"' | 11-14 [Dk gray mic silt & mic fine sand 25 6D: s1ightly organic
= 27.0' | 19-20 | (layered) (M. & SM)
- —
] =
@ . [7,)
«~ |70 [30.0" 6-7 Dk gray clayey silt, trace 30
iy 32.0' { 11-14 |red silt pockets (M)
3 Telescoped 3"
casing inside of
8D {35.0' | 20-27 |Brown mic silty fine to medium 35 4" casing from
37.0' | 32-40 |[sand, tr red silty clay pockets, 20.0'-42.0°'.
; : coarse sand, gravel (SM) |
=
1015 | 90 {40.0' |18-100/5" [Brown slightly mic f-c sand, sm| ¢ | 40 L
40,9' silt, gravel, tr mica (M) 1.5 E?Fg.dﬂ”mg at
Toﬁ o% rock at
. 41.5'.
45
FOR DESCRIPTION OF
OF ROCK CORE, SEE
SHEET NO. 2
.|
BORING No. 3p
Plate 12 Core 3P
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l FILE NO. 732 _
BORING MNO. —1%3_
PROJECT 53rd at Third Project surracE ELXV. 277
I LOCATION Wew York, New Yorx nes. encn. Abu  Arif
SAMPLE
DAILY DESCRIPTION STRA tasnes REMARKS
I 930 | 10| 0.0'|15-17 |Concrete & brick fragments, tr
1 - Lt
1.8'27-100/3" wood, fine to co?;ﬁ] §a?gp) Lost water below
casing
' .-2D| 5.0 43-50 |Brick fragments (Fi11} (GP) 2
6.3'| 100/3"
i = =
© 3 NR|10.0']| 10072 T Hard drilling at.
| 3 10,2 9.5' to 13.5'.
1
il 30| 14.0'| 31-20 |Gray rock fragments, some brown 4" Casing to 16.0
l ' 16.0' | 19-5 silt, fine to medium sand |, 15 | 93 i
' (Fi11) (GP-GM) 16 | 100 | Hard drilling @16.0'
4 1C | 17.0' |Rec=55% |Gray-pink schistose gneiss & Lost water @ 17.0'
B 21.0' " | pegmatite, tr concrete !ayers o O
l a (rock slab wall or footing) R
' "] 4D | 21.07 | 32-36 | Gray-green-brown fine to coarse 21
l = 23.0' | 31-17 |sand, some silt, trace rock o
- fragments, gravel, mica = :
' ’ T (sM) B [201% | nW casing to 25.0'
1530 | 50 25.0'| 12-14 |Gray-brown silt, some fine to 23 Pulled out 4"
l 730 27.0' | 13-15 |medium sand, tr mica = (ML) casing
'—
=
I 60| 30.0' | 1-2 Brown mic silt, some clay, tr “ 130
32.0' [ 3-5 fine sand (ML)
I 33
701 35.0' [ 11-14 |Brown mic fine to medium sand, 35
I 37.0' | 14-21 |some silt . (SM)
-
2 _ Rod -
S 2_ chattering @ 38.0°
l “| 8p | 40.0' | 27-21 |Gray-brown mic fine to coarse vi | 40
- 41.3' 1 100/4" |sand, some silt, rock fragments : i
24 trace gravel (SM) ’ Wi lasing 4.3
" Top of rock @ 44.0'
— 44
a 45
l %
=) FOR DESCRIPTION OF
_ s ROCK CORE,SEE SHEET
I NC. 2. A
1030
I BORING No. 1]
i plate 13  Core 11
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Locamon_ New vork, New York res. engr.  Abu __Arif
"SAMPLE .
DAILY SAMPLE DESCRIFTION STRA Lo REMARKS
NO. | DEFTH | ROWS/4 : TA serm | Lo ‘
1015 | 10| 0.0' | 15-25 {Brown fine to coarse sand, some
2.0' | 29-38 |brick & concrete fgmts, tr wood |
stone (FiT1) (SP)
20! s5.0° 15-13 |Gray fine to corase sand, some 5
: 7.0' | 11-10 |[brick fgmts tr silt (Fﬂi)( -3)
s |
=
TR - =
3D | 10.0' | 29-42 |[Gray-brn mic fine to coarse 101 =
E -111.5"| 100 sand, sm rock fgmts, tr silt »
2 (F111)(SP SM) = :
= o 4" casing to 14.0'
1C | 14.0' | Rec=48% | Gray gneissic quartz mica 13.51 5 | Hard drilling €13.5'
- 15.0' schist, some concrete layers [|so_p12
2 - (rocks'lab wall or footing) 85;’ =
] [==V,]
= N T
—t 4§
< 19| =
20 ’
.~ | 4D }20.8 8-13 |Brown mic silt, trace fine to &
= 22.5'| 15-16 |medium sand (ML) ar =
[ ¥g] ’ ==
b4 . W ;
E 8D [ 25.0' | - 6-7 |Top: -Brn mic silt, tr f-m sa(M.) 25 | @
27.0" 8-18 |[Bot: Brn mic silty f-m sand 26
: (SM) - =
= Hard drilling @ 29.0
1330 vi 29 NW casing @ 29.0'
30 Top of rock @ 23.0'
35
FOR DESCRIPTION OF
ROCK CORE, SEE SHEET a0 |
NO. 2.
45
L 80
BORING No. 12
Plate 14 ___ Core 12
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4th Street from Third Avenue

5
Third Avenue at 54th Street

East
Plate 15
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